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 Procurement Management Department 
2115 Second Street, 1st Floor 

Fort Myers, FL  33901 
Main Line:  (239) 533-8881 

Fax Line:  (239) 485-8383 
www.leegov.com/procurement 

Posted Date:  January 18, 2023 
 
Solicitation No.: DB230056JJB 
 
Solicitation Name:  Emergency Lift Station 5507 Replacement  
  
Subject:   Addendum Number 2 
 
The following represents clarification, additions, deletions, and/or modifications to the above referenced bid. This 
addendum shall hereafter be regarded as part of the solicitation. Items not referenced herein remain unchanged, including 
the response date. Words, phrases or sentences with a strikethrough represent deletions to the original solicitation. 
Underlined words and bolded, phrases or sentences represent additions to the original solicitation. 
 
1. ATTACHMENT:  

a. 1st Pre-Bid Sign-In Sheet 
b. 2nd Pre-Bid Sign-In Sheet  

 
2. QUESTIONS/ANSWERS 

1. 

FDOT performed emergency restoration of SR-78 due to the damage caused by 
Hurricane Ian, where rock was placed to restore Pine Island ingress / egress. What 
specifications for the rock / fill materials did FDOT require and how deep does the rock 
/ fill extend? 

Answer To be determined during field investigation and coordinated with FDOT. 
  

2. Will FDOT be responsible for all “after the fact” environmental permitting associated 
with the restoration of the land lost due to the hurricane? 

Answer Not known at this time. 
  
3. Please provide FDOT’s plans for the final SR-78 roadway corrections. 
Answer FDOT is in the process of producing plans. 
  

4. What is the schedule for FDOT to perform final corrections to SR-78 within the 
proximity to this project? 

Answer Not known at this time. 
  

5. Please provide documents (easement) to enable authorized access to the Lift Station 
#5507 site. 

Answer To be provided at time of award. 
  

6. Please provide the design plans for Lift Station #5507 along with the associated 
collection system. 

Answer The solicitation includes design services. 
  
7. Please provide the plans for the water main and water services. 
Answer The solicitation includes design services. 
  
8. Will/did lift station have a dedicated water service? 
Answer Yes. 
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9. What are the design criteria (flow & pressure head) for the wastewater pumps at Lift 
Station #5507? 

Answer The solicitation includes design services. 
  
10. What is the available power supplied to the lift station? 
Answer The solicitation includes design services. 
  
11. The extensive time currently needed for procurement of materials may push the 

schedule beyond the desired completion date. What consideration will the County give 
for timeline adjustments due to this issue? 

Answer The County can provide a delayed Notice to Proceed to allow time for materials. 
  
12. The required Form 1a (Bid/Proposal Form) that is to be submitted with this package 

was not included in the solicitation documents. Is this form to be created by the proposer 
or will the County be providing this form? 

Answer This is to be created by the proposer.  
  
13. The timeframe to complete this proposal is relatively short. Would the County consider 

extending the due date by a week? 
Answer Please see the due date extension on Addendum 1.  
  
14. Will the County require presentations / interviews following the short-listing, or in the 

interest of time, will negotiations with the #1 ranked firm begin immediately following 
the short-listing? 

Answer The County will require presentations from the shortlisted firms.  
 

15. When is the anticipated project awarded, contract execution and issuance of the notice 
to proceed to be provided after selection? 

Answer The tentative Board Date for this project is April 4, 2023. Both contract execution 
and issuance of the Notice to Proceed will likely be completed within a month of 
the Board Date.  

 
16. Will substantial and final completion be moved, if the design build team cannot acquire 

the pipe, lift station and ancillary equipment and electrical hook up to meet the 
substantial completion June 2023 date? 

Answer Please bid as specified. 
 

17. The special conditions state “work completed under this agreement may be reimbursed 
by FEMA …. Please provide the contract details of the payment process to the DB 
team. 

Answer The County will be paying the awarded vendor for the work. 
 

18. Tab 4 – Personnel requires the DB Team to identify on the team who has FEMA 
experience. What will the duties of the FEMA experience person be? 

Answer Thai is unknown at this time. 
 

19. Please elaborate on the requirements of the design build team as it relates to the FEMA 
person. 

Answer Please see the answer to #18. 
 

20. With a 10-page limit, will the Reference Response Form 3 be counted against the 
overall 10-page limit? 

Answer No. 
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21. Since the intent of this project will be to design and construct this project in coordination 

with FDOT’s reconstruction of the roadway and bridge abutments, the Design Build 
Teams will need specific limits and scope to provide a price for the work. Please provide 
the specific limits of construction and scope with reference to the materials the DB team 
should be responsible for. 

Answer Please bid as specified. 
 

22. Since the RFP mentions “like kind” in the description of work. Is the intent for the DB 
Team to price the work as if we are installing the same products as the original as-builts 
provided? 

Answer Yes, with the exception of the force main pipe material. 
 

23. When an adjusted score RFP submission includes price as part of the criteria it is 
customary for the price to be submitted in a separate envelope, so the dollar amount 
does not influence the other scoring criteria. Please consider changing the pricing 
requirement submission to a separate sealed envelope within the overall RFP package. 

Answer No, The County intendeds to keep the solicitation as is. 
 

24. I would request that the submission date be moved out up to 2 weeks (January 31, 2023) 
for all teams to have time to evaluate the answers to all the questions and then complete 
their submission and price package. 

Answer Please see the due date extension on Addendum 1. 
 

25. Please provide a copy of the sign in sheet from both mandatory pre-bids. 
Answer Please see the Sign-in sheets attached.  

 
26. Due to the number of questions asked during the pre-bid meetings regarding unknowns, 

assumptions, and clarifications required and other anticipated questions as part of the 
Addendum process; will Lee County consider an extension of the submittal date until 
January 31, 2023? This will allow the proposers the necessary time to assess the 
County’s direction and clarifications in the addendum and to prepare a more detailed 
submittal for the betterment of the project. 

Answer Please see the due date extension on Addendum 1. 
 

27. Page 8, Section 21. Sub-proposer/Consultant. The use of Sub-Proposer/Consultant 
under this solicitation is not allowed without prior written authorization from the 
County representative. 
 
Can the County provide clarification on the above statement related to the delivery 
method proposed for this project, integrated Design-Build. It is assumed that a DB 
contractor submitting as a prime (proposer) on this project will have subconsultants 
(design engineers) and subcontractors on its team as part of the proposal. 

Answer The vendor shall list all known subcontractors/consultants on Form #6 at the time 
of bid submission.  

 
28. Page 9. Section 23 Permits (Construction) The Contractor will also pay all public utility 

charges and connection fees, except as provided for in the Contract Documents. 
 
Is this requirement applicable to this RFP? If yes, please provide further direction in the 
Contract Documents. 

Answer Not at this time. 
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29. Page 9. Section 24. Design-Build Team Requirements. Ancillary Technical Services:  
The County may request that the Design-Build Firm perform Ancillary Technical 
Services that include, but not limited to: Geotechnical, Survey, etc. 
 
At which time will Lee County provide direction on whether Lee County will provide 
these services at their cost during procurement period (which would save time on the 
project schedule) versus the Design-Build firm providing the services and bearing the 
costs. We request this question be addressed prior to Design-Build Firm submitting a 
GMP / Price. 

Answer Ancillary services are included in the solicitation. 
 

30. Page 10. Section 25.1.1 
 
Which portions of the work does Lee County anticipate performing for this project?  
This will have a direct bearing on the DB firm preparing the GMP. 

Answer The County does not intend to perform any of the utility work. 
 

31. Page 10. Section 26.2.2 and 27.1.  Short-listing and on-site interview/presentation 
 
Does the County anticipate conducting a short-listing and interviews during the 
procurement phase? This would be helpful for the proposer to know in regard to the 
overall project timeline from RFP submittal to construction substantial completion date. 

Answer Yes. 
 

32. Page 18. Special Conditions, 2. Project Team. Substantial Completion June 2023. 
 
Page 5. Section 5. Design Services of the Design Build Criteria states Professional 
Services will be provided by the DB, including but not limited to the following: prepare 
design plans and technical specifications with document and constructability reviews at 
30%, 60%, and 100% completion; evaluate design alternative, prepare permit 
applications, and obtain permits required by all regulatory agencies, including but not 
limited to FDEP, SWFWMD, FDOT, and Lee County. 
 
The time between proposer’s submittals (January 17, 2023) and County’s proposed 
substantial completion date of June 2023 is approximately five months. As noted in the 
RFP, the procurement schedule may include the County short-listing DB firms after the 
written submittal and the selected proposer’s award/contract will require BOCC 
approval. 
 
Recognizing the County’s requirements for procurement, multiple design submittals 
and review meetings, the time required to prepare, submit, and obtain permit approvals 
from multiple agencies prior to construction being allowed to start, procuring 
equipment and materials considering current supply chain conditions and longer lead 
times, will the County consider a later substantial completion date than June 2023? If 
so, can the proposer include in their submittal alternative substantial completion dates? 

Answer Please bid as specified. 
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33. Page 18. Special Conditions, 2. Design Build Contract. Design Builder’s submitted 
price proposal is to be lump sum amount for completing the scope of Work in this 
solicitation. 
 
Design Build Criteria Package Page 4. Project Component Analysis. Approval of the 
GMP is necessary to start the second phase of the Design-Build. If at any point an 
equitable GMP cannot be negotiated, the contract shall be cancelled. Based on review 
of the statement above, the full design criteria package that discussed project 
evaluations and alternative analysis, and the County’s two step DB contract process 
referenced, there seems to be a conflict between the RFP Special Conditions page 18 
and the terms and conditions in the RFP Design Build Criteria Package and Scope of 
Services.  
 
Does the County desire the selected DB proposer to develop, negotiate, and agree upon 
the GMP with the County after collaboration with Lee County and FDOT during the 
BODR and alternative analysis phase (Phase I) or submit a price proposal with the 
proposer’s RFP written submittal? If a price proposal is required with the proposer’s 
initial submittal, what assumptions should the proposing DB firm make in determining 
the price considering the RFP and DB criteria indicate certain services and project 
components that have been yet to be determined who is responsible (i.e., Lee County, 
FDOT, or Design-Build firm) 

Answer Vendor shall submit a Guaranteed Maximum Price to complete the project at the 
time of submission. 

 
34. Page 28. Detailed Project Specifications, Background 2.2 

 
Does the project scope of work include the design and construction of sanitary sewer 
laterals and cleanouts within the public right-of-way? 

Answer The solicitation includes design services. 
 

35. Page 28. Detailed Project Specifications, Background 2.5 All LCU collection utilities 
between the two points in the system require a full replacement pending further 
investigation and evaluation. 
 

a. Who is to perform further investigation and evaluation? Is that LCU, 
Design-build firm, or Design-build firm in collaboration with LCU? 
Section 3.1.1 notes that LCU operations group is conducting an inspection 
and system evaluation to access damage and test the integrity of the system. 
Can Lee County share which time of assessment and testing is being 
conducted for which the selected Design-Build firm will need to evaluate? 
 

b. Does LCU require the existing potable water system within the limits of 
the project to be replaced like-for-like? 

 
c. Based on LCU’s initial site observations and findings, should the DB team 

design a total replacement of the 1,300 feet of gravity sewer/force main or 
focus on the evaluation of the existing system to determine if certain 
sections can remain or be rehabilitated versus compete replacement? The 
answer to this question will make a considerable difference in the total 
price. 

Answer a. The solicitation includes design services. 
b. No. 
c. The solicitation includes design services. 
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36. Page 28, Section 3 Scope of Work. Section 3.1.5 Basis of Design Report (BODR) 
submittal is required following the analysis of the County’s inspection and system 
evaluation. 
 
When does LCU expect to complete and issue its inspection and system evaluation 
findings report to the DB firm? The DB design criteria package requires 30%, 60%, and 
100% submittals but makes no mention of BODR submittal. Is the BODR submittal to 
be included with the DB firm’s 30% submittal or is the BODR a separate submittal 
ahead of the 30% submittal? 

Answer BODR submittal to be included with the 30% submittal. 
 

37. Page 29, Section 3.2.1. Architectural/Engineering needed. 
 
What architectural services does the County envision for this project? Does Lee County 
anticipate a building? 

Answer No architectural services included in this solicitation. 
 

38. Page 29, Section 3.2.2. Services may include 30%, 60%, 90%, and 100% levels of 
completion. 
 

a. Design Build Criteria Package Page 5. Section 5. Design Services. 
Professional Services will be provided by the DB, including but not limited 
to the following:  prepare design plans and technical specifications with 
document and constructability reviews at 30%, 60%, and 100% 
completion; evaluate design alternative, prepare permit applications, and 
obtain permits required by all regulatory agencies, including but not limited 
to FDEP, SWFWMD, FDOT, and Lee County. The requirements of 
Section 3.2.2 are different than the design-build criteria. Please provide 
clear directions on which design submittals are required (i.e., of the 
following: BODR, 30%, 60%, 90%, 100%). And which design submittals 
are at the discretion of the DB firm. 
 

b. Value Engineering Meetings are referenced. At which design submittal 
phases prior to the Design Build firm GMP does the County desire value 
engineering meetings? 

Answer a. BODR to be included with 30% submittal, and 90% submittal is not 
required. 

b. None, no value engineering meetings are expected. 
 

39. Page 29, Section 4 Design Builder responsibility. Under Section 4.3, the Design-
Builder shall be responsible for survey, geotechnical and environmental investigations. 
 

a. In other locations of Lee County’s RFP and Design Build Criteria, these 
services noted above may be required to be performed by Design Build 
firm or could be performed by Lee County. For the purposes of the 
proposer’s making the RFP submittal, should these services be included as 
part of the Design-Build firm’s team? 
 

b. Also, the statement refers to the Design-Build firm being responsible for 
these services before the date of their proposal. Is proposal intended to 
mean the Design Build firm RFP proposal submittal or the design build 
firm’s future GMP submittal? 

Answer a. Ancillary services are included in the solicitation. 
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b. Page 29 Section 4.3 does not apply. 
 

40. 15. Page 30, Design-Builder Responsibility Section 4.7. FPL easement survey and 
legal description. 
 

a. Are these services required for this project? I.e., FPL easement survey? 
 

b. If yes to the above, can you provide more detail about the services required. 
Answer The solicitation includes design services. 

 
41. Page 31. Submittal Requirements. 

 
a. Tab 1: May the Design-Build Firm Proposer include with its submittal in 

this section experience of key members of its team including engineering 
disciplines that are subconsultants? 
 

b. Tab 2: May the Design-Build Firm Proposer include with its submittal in 
this section experience of key members of its team including engineering 
disciplines that are subconsultants? 

 
c. Tab 2: May project reference forms be included for both the Design-Build 

Contractor and the engineering design disciplines? 
 

d. Tab 4: May the organizational chart be submitted on 11 x 17? 
 

e. Tab 4: Are the pages with firm and personnel licenses / certifications 
included against the page limitation? 

Answer a. Yes. 
b. Yes. 
c. Yes. 
d. Yes. 
e. No. 

 
42. Tab 5: Price Proposal 

a. The request for price at time of submittal does not seem to be consistent 
with the requirements of the Design-Build Criteria package and the Scope 
of Services (i.e., Phase I and II contracts, Design Build firm to conduct 
evaluations and BODR to evaluate alternatives to define project 
components). Additionally, there are key unknows to the nature of the work 
required as noted at the Pre-Bid meetings and in this RFP package, such as 
County evaluations are still ongoing and who is responsible for certain 
components of the project (Lee County, FDOT, Design-Build Firm). 
Would the County consider the Design-Build proposers submitting sealed 
financial cost info, such as bonds and insurance as % of construction, 
general conditions costs, or other financial terms not related to the fixed 
price of the project at the time of the RFP submittal since there are many 
unknowns and risks not yet quantifiable. Best practices indicate Lee 
County will obtain better value (price) with less contingency built in if 
some of the project unknowns and risks can be determined during the Phase 
I of the contract, preconstruction services, prior to the Design-Build firm 
submitting a GMP) 
 

b. Based on Lee County’s answer to the above, please provide the format for 
the price proposal. 

Answer a. The County intendeds to keep the solicitation as is. 
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b. It is up to the vendor to provide the format for the price proposal. Vendor 
shall submit a Guaranteed Maximum Price to complete the project at the 
time of submission. 

 
43. Page 1, Section 2. Location and Background. “Inspection and system evaluation is 

ongoing.” The Design-Build Criteria package was dated November 2022. 
 
Can Lee County please share any preliminary findings or conclusions based on the 
County’s ongoing inspection and system evaluation noted in the Nov 2022 signed and 
sealed DB Criteria Package that would benefit the proposers in preparing a more 
complete submittal. 

Answer No additional information is available at this time. 
 

44. Page 1, Section 2. Location and Background. “It is assumed at this time that the entire 
section as described in Appendix A is in need of full replacement” 
 
Should the proposer assume full replacement of the lift station, force main, and gravity 
sanitary sewer system in the same location prior to the Hurricane. If alternative 
locations are to be considered, will Lee County lead the land acquisition process 
(temporary or permanent easement, land purchase, etc., if required)? 
 
What are the desired termination points of the sanitary sewer laterals on both sides of 
the road? 

Answer Please bid as specified. 
 

45. Page 3 and 4. Survey. Consultant is to verify location of ROW, Legal sketches, and 
description for OR 119/2118 have been provided in Appendix C. 
 

a. Based on the Strap Number and Site Address provided, the LS site is shown 
to be on a parcel owned by a private owner, Prop M Corp. It appears from 
review of the 1983 record drawings that LCU has an utility easement for 
the LS site. Can LCU please provide a copy of the recorded easement 
and/or a map (legal sketch and description) delineating the easement 
limits? 
 

b. Does Lee County know if the Florida Department of Transportation 
(FDOT) will make changes to the ROW widths for the permanent roadway 
construction?? 

Answer a. To be provided at time of award. 
b. Unknown at this time. 

 
46. Page 4. Project Component Analysis. 

 
Due to Hurricane damage on Pine Island and the surrounding areas, will the wastewater 
flow from the Lift Station 5507 be routed to a different treatment plant or a different 
part of Lee County’s wastewater collection system, i.e., change to the hydraulic 
conditions? Should this be the case, the replacement of pumps and other project 
components may not be like-for-like and therefore will need further analysis before the 
project design can be finished. 

Answer Please bid as specified. 
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47. Page 4. Project Component Analysis. “…brining the proposed equipment up to current 
code” 
 

a. Does Lee County have any imminent changes to its Utilities Design 
Manual expected to take effect in the next four to five months? Or to its 
technical specifications / approved list of materials? (i.e., SCADA and 
controls) 
 

b. The record drawings show the original station was constructed in 1981. 
Since 1981, did Lee County perform any major R&R on the Lift Station, 
Force Main, and Gravity Sanitary Sewer such that certain portions of the 
record drawings are not representative of like-for-like conditions. 

Answer a. No changes to any of this documentation envisioned in the next four to five 
months. 

b. This solicitation includes design services. 
 

48. Page 4. Project Component Analysis. Approval of the GMP is necessary to start the 
second phase of the Design-Build. If at any point an equitable GMP cannot be 
negotiated, the contract shall be cancelled.  
 
Based on review of the statement above, the full design criteria package that discussed 
project evaluations and analysis, and the County’s two step DB contract process 
referenced in the RFP, it can be assumed the County is following Design Build of 
America (DBIA) and Design Build Council best practices of Progressive Design Build 
procurement and delivery method. There are certain sections of the RFP general 
conditions that seem to indicate a different DB procurement and delivery approach. 
Does the County desire the GMP to be developed, negotiated, and agreed upon after 
collaboration with Lee County and FDOT during the BODR and alternative analysis 
phase? If not, at what phase of design development? 

Answer Vendor shall submit a Guaranteed Maximum Price to complete the project at the 
time of submission. During negotiations the GMP amount may be negotiated 
however, a final GMP will be in the contract taken to the board for award prior 
to the Notice to Proceed being issued. Any questions relating to FDOT projects 
should be directed to FDOT.  

 
49. Page 5. Section 4.3 Overall Site Layout. As part of the evaluation, consider FDOT plans 

for road construction. 
 
Is Lee County aware of any proposed FDOT ROW takings? Is Lee County know FDOT 
plans for elevating the roadway grade compared to what existed pre-Hurricane? 

Answer Unknown at this time. 
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50. Page 5. Section 5. Design Services. Professional Services will be provided by the DB, 
including but not limited to the following:  prepare design plans and technical 
specifications with document and constructability reviews at 30%, 60%, and 100% 
completion; evaluate design alternative, prepare permit applications, and obtain permits 
required by all regulatory agencies, including but not limited to FDEP, SWFWMD, 
FDOT, and Lee County. 
 
Page 7 Section 8. Project Schedule. Substantial Completion is planned for June 2023, 
which will consist of construction completion. 
 
The time between proposer’s submittals (January 17, 2023) and County’s proposed 
substantial completion date of June 2023 is approximately five months. As noted in the 
RFP, the procurement schedule may include the County short-listing firms after the 
written submittal and the selected proposer’s award/contract will require BOCC 
approval. 
 
Recognizing the County’s requirements for procurement, multiple design submittals 
and review meetings, the time required to prepare, submit, and obtain permit approvals 
from multiple agencies prior to construction being allowed to start, procuring 
equipment and materials considering current supply chain conditions, will the County 
consider a later substantial completion date than June 2023. If so, can the proposer 
include in their submittal alternative substantial completion dates. 

Answer Please bid as specified. 
 

51. Page 6. Section 6. Construction Services. “including direct purchased materials by 
LCU;” 
 
Does LCU have any intention to direct purchase any of the equipment or materials for 
this project? If so, which items and when does LCU intend to purchase them? This will 
have an effect on DB firm price. 

Answer LCU intends to purchase the electrical control panel for the pump station. Any 
purchased materials delivery to be coordinated after award. 

 
52. Page 7. Section 9. Project Cost Estimate. The current project cost is estimated at 

approximately $1.6 million. 
 

a. What is Lee County’s basis for the project cost estimate? Was a conceptual 
estimate prepared that included each of the main project components? 
 

b. Does the $1.6M project cost estimate include all pre-construction and 
construction costs for complete replacement of the lift station, force main, 
and gravity sanitary sewer system? What level of surface restoration is 
required, considering FDOT will be constructing the permanent roadway 
after Lee County’s project is completed. 

Answer Please bid as specified. 
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BIDDER/PROPOSER IS ADVISED, YOU ARE REQUIRED TO ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THIS 
ADDENDUM WHEN SUBMITTING A BID/PROPOSAL.  FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS 
REQUIREMENT MAY RESULT IN THE BIDDER/PROPOSER BEING CONSIDERED NON-RESPONSIVE. 
 
ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS ARE AND SHALL 
REMAIN THE SAME. 
 
  Jake Bond  
Jake Bond 
Procurement Analyst Direct Line:  239-533-8898 
Lee County Procurement Management 
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